UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CASE NUMBER

Kaushi Entertainment, LLC, a limited
liability company, Dro-~Entertainment

Inc.
PLAINTIFF(S)
V.
Estate of Christopher Wallace, Faith Evans, an
individual, Damion Butler, an individual, Rocdarling SUMMONS
Films, LLC,a limited liability cempany, and DOES 1-10
DEFENDANT(S) .
TO: DEFENDANT(S): See_attached (Schedule A)
A lawsuit has been filed against you.
Within 30 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you
must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached [X ] complaint [ ] amended complaint
I Jcounterclaim[ | cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer
or motion must be served on the plaintiff’s attorney, Lowe Taw, P.C, , whose address is
11400 Olympic Blvd. STE 640, Los Angeles CA 90064 . If you fail to do so,

judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file
your answer or motion with the court. '

Clerk, U.S. District Court

Dated: By:

Deputy Clerk

(Seal of the Couri)

[Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United States agency, or is an officer or employee of the United States. Allowed
60 days by Rule 12(a)(3)].

CV-01A (12/07) SUMMONS
GCR-1A
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Schedule A

Estate of Christopher Wallace

Faith Evans, an individual

Damion Butler, an individual

Rocdarling Films, LLC, a limited liability company
DOES 1-10
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Steven T. Lowe, Esq., SBN 122208
Kelly Houle, Esq., SBN 267958

LOWE LAW, A Professional Law Corporation

11400 Olympic Boulevard, Suite 640
Los Angeles, California 90064
Telephone: (310) 477-5811
Facsimile: (310) 477-7672

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
KAUSHI ENTERTAINMENT and
DRO-ENTERTAINMENT

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

KAUSHI ENTERTAINMENT, LLC,
a limited liability company, DRO-
ENTERTAINMENT INC.

Plaintiff,
V.

ESTATE OF CHRISTOPHER
WALLACE, FAITH EVANS, an
individual, DAMION BUTLER, an
individual, ROCDARLING FILMS,
LLC, a limited liability company, and
DOES 1-10, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASE NO.:
COMPLAINT FOR:

BREACH OF CONTRACT;
BREACH OF CONTRACT;
BREACH OF CONTRACT;
PROMISSORY FRAUD;
PROMISSORY FRAUD;

Ul R e

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs in the above captioned action hereby allege as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. At all times mentioned herein, Plaintiff Kaushi Entertainment, LLC

(“Plaintiff” or “Kaushi”) is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws

of the State of California, with a business address of 9663 Santa Monica Blvd., Ste

406, Beverly Hills, CA 90210.
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2. At all times mentioned herein, Plaintiff Dro-Entertainment Inc.
(“Plaintiff” or “Dro”) is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of
the State of California, and doing business in the County of Los Angeles, State of

California.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This court has exclusive jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. §

1332 because the matter in controversy exceeds the sum or value of $75,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, and is between citizens of different States.
4. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§1391 and 1400

in that plaintiffs’ principal places of business are in Los Angeles, CA and each and

every defendant transacts business in Los Angeles, California.
PARTIES
5. Upon information and belief, at all times mentioned herein, Defendant

RocDarling Films, LLC, (hereafter “RocDarling”) was a limited liability company
registered with the state of Delaware, and with a business address of 725 River Road
#32-112, Edgewater, NJ 07020.

6. Upon information and belief, at all times mentioned herein, Defendant
Estate of Christopher Wallace (“Estate™), a legal entity form unknown, has a
business address _of 59 Maiden Lane, 27™ Floor, New York, NY 10038.

7. Upon information and belief, at all times mentioned herein, Defendant
Faith Evans (“Evans”), was executor of the Estate of Christopher Wallace, and had
an address of 59 Maiden Lane, 27" Floor, New York, NY 10038.

8. Upon information and belief, at all times mentioned herein, Defendant
Damion Butler (“Butler”), was director of the Estate of Christopher Wallace, and
has a business address of 59 Maiden Lane, 27" Floor, New York, NY 10038.

2
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9.  Plaintiffs are unaware of the true names and capacities of the
defendants sued herein as DOES 1 through 10, inclusive, and for that reason, sue
such defendant under such fictitious names. Plaintiffs are informed and believes
and based thereon alleges that such fictitiously named defendants are responsible in
some manner for the occurrences herein alleged, and that plaintiff’s damages as
herein alleged were proximately caused by the conduct of said defendants.

Plaintiffs will seek to amend the complaint when the names and capacities of such
fictitiously named defendants are ascertained. As alleged herein, defendants shall
mean all named defendants and all fictitiously named defendants.

10.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe and based thereon allege that
defendants at all times relative to this action, were the agents, servants, partners,
joint venturers and employees of each of the other defendants and in doing the acts
alleged herein were acting with the knowledge and consent of each of the other
defendants in this action. Alternatively, at all times mentioned herein, each of the
defendants conspired with each other to commit the wrongful acts complained of
herein. Although not all of the defendants committed all of the acts of the
conspiracy or were members of the conspiracy at all times during its existence, each
defendant knowingly performed one or more acts in direct furtherance of the
objectives of the conspiracy. Therefore, each defendant is liable for the acts of all of
the other conspirators.. Furthermore, plaintiffs are informed and believes and based
thereon allege that defendant Damion Butler was at all times relative to this action,
the alter ego of defendant RocDarling; there exists such a unity of interest and
ownership between Damion Butler and RocDarling that the separate personalities of
the corporation and the individual no longer exist. If the acts of Damion Butler and
the acts of RocDarling are treated as those of the corporation alone, where Damnion
Butler engaged in or otherwise authorized the conduct complained of herein, there

will be an inequitable result in this action.

3
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THE AGREEMENT
11.  On or about February 27, 2007, plaintiffs Kaushi and Dro, on the one

hand, and defendant RocDarling, on the other, entered into a written agreement
whereby defendant was to provide archive footage of the Notorious BIG a/k/a
Biggie Smalls a/k/a Christopher Wallace (the “Footage”™), which is warranted and
represented that it owned and controlled, to plaintiffs for valuable consideration (the
“Agreement”). A copy of the License Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

12.  As a condition precedent to plaintiffs’ obligations under the
Agreement, defendant RocDarling was to provide documentation expressly stating
that the executors of the Estate had authorized defendant’s use of the footage, and
also stating that defendant RocDarling had the authority to act on behalf of the
Estate.

13.  On or about March 10, 2009, Butler, the Director for the Estate, sent a
notarized letter to plaintiff Kaushi, in which Butler granted permission to defendant
RocDarIiﬁg to commercially exploit archive footage of the Notorious BIG, and to
use the name and likeness of Notorious BIG as it related to the Agreement. Butler
further agreed to continue to support and facilitate all necessary clearances and
documents to assist in the operations of the Agreement as it pertained to the
Notorious BIG. A copy of the Letter from Damion Butler is attached hereto as
Exhibit B.

14.  On or about March 10, 2009, defendant Evans, the Executor of the
Estate, sent a notarized letter to plaintiff Kaushi, in which Evans granted permission
to Butler and/or RocDarling to commercially exploit the Footage pursuant to the
Agreement. Evans further agreed to continue to support and facilitate all necessary
clearances and documents to assist in the operations of the Agreement as it pertained
to the Notorious BIG. A copy of the Letter from Faith Evans is attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

4
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15.  Shortly after the Agreement was fully executed, plaintiffs paid a sum of
approximately $30,000 to defendant RocDarling pursuant to § 5 of the Agreement

(the “Advance™).

16.  Defendants have failed to deliver any Footage to plaintiffs, including
but not limited to watermark DVD screening copies of the Footage pursuant to § 9
of the Agreement.

17.  Upon information and belief, defendant(s) have licensed the right to
distribute and exploit the Footage to at least one other party, in violation of
plaintiffs’ rights of exclusivity pursuant to § 3 and 4(a) of the Agreement,

18.  Defendants have failed to proceed with or develop any “RocDarling
Ventures,” as specified in § 11(a) of the Agreement. Defendants have further failed
to partner with plaintiffs in connection with any “RocDarling Ventures,” as

specified in § 11(a) of the Agreement.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Breach of Contract — RocDarling Films)

19.  Plaintiffs hereby repeat and reallege by reference all facts and
allegations contained in paragraphs 1-18 of this Complaint as though fully and
completely set forth in full herein.

20.  Plaintiffs performed all terms and conditions of said Agreement, except
to the extent that their performance was waived, prevented or excused by the acts,
conduct and/or omissions of defendants.

21.  Plaintiffs allege that defendant RocDarling has breached the above-
mentioned Agreement by failing to deliver any archive Footage in accordance with
the terms of the Agreement, including by failing to deliver watermark DVD
screening copies of the Footage to plaintiffs as required by 1 9 of the Agreement,

and as set forth in Paragraphs 15-17 hereinabove.

i
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22.  Asaresult of the foregoing, plaintiffs have been damaged in an amount

according to proof, including anticipated lost profits in excess of $1,000,000.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Breach of Contract — Faith Evans and Estate)

23.  Plaintiffs hereby repeat and reallege by reference all facts and
allegations contained in paragraphs 1-22 of this Complaint as though fully and
completely set forth in full herein.

24.  On or about March 10, 2009, defendant Evans, the Executor of the
Estate, sent a notarized letter to plaintiff Kaushi, in which Evans granted permission
to Butler and/or RocDarling to commercially exploit the Footage pursuant to the
Agreement. Evans further agreed to continue to support and facilitate all necessary
clearances and documents to assist in the operations of the Agreement as it pertained
to the Notorious BIG. By virtue of this letter, Evans became a joint obligor to the
Agreement.

25.  Plaintiffs performed all terms and conditions of said Agreement, except
to the extent that their performance was waived, prevented or excused by the acts,
conduct and/or omissions of defendants.

26.  Plaintiffs allege that defendants Evans and Estate have breached the
above-mentioned Agreement by, inter alia, failing to deliver any archive Footage in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement, including by failing to deliver
watermark DVD screening copies of the Footage to plaintiffs as required by 9 of
the Agreement, and failing to support and facilitate all necessary clearances.

27.  Plaintiffs allege that defendants Evans and Estate have further breached
the above-mentioned Agreement by licensing the rights to distribute the Footage
and/or to exploit the Footage to at least one other party, in violation of ] 3 and 4(a)

of the Agreement, wherein plaintiffs were granted exclusive rights to distribute the

6
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Footage and to exploit the Footage in connection with the Rights granted in the

Agreement.

28. Plaintiffs allege that defendants Evans and Estate have further breached
the above-mentioned Agreement by failing to proceed with any RocDarling
Ventures, as specified in  11(a) of the Agreement, and by failing to partner with
plaintiffs in connection with any RocDarling Ventures, as specified in | 11(a) of the

Agreement.

29.  As aresult of the foregoing, plaintiffs have been damaged in an amount

according to proof, including lost profits in excess of $1,000,000.

THIRD CLLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Breach of Contract — Damion Butler and Estate)

30. Plaintiffs hereby repeat and reallege by reference all facts and
allegations contained in paragraphs 1-29 of this Complaint as though fully and
completely set forth in full herein.

31.  On or about March 10, 2009, defendant Butler, the Director of the
Estate, sent a notarized letter to plaintiff Kaushi, in which Butler granted permission
to RocDarling to commercially exploit the Footage pursuant to the Agreement.
Butler further agreed to continue to support and facilitate all necessary clearances
and documents to assist in the operations of the Agreement as it pertained to the
Notorious BIG. By virtue of this letter, Butler became a joint obligor to the
Agreement.

32.  Plaintiffs performed all terms and conditions of said Agreement, except
to the extent that their performance was waived, prevented or excused by the acts,
conduct and/or omissions of defendants.

| 33. Plaintiffs allege that defendants Butler and Estate have breached the
above-mentioned Agreement by, inter alia, failing to deliver any archive Footage in

accordance with the terms of the Agreement, including by failing to deliver

7
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watermark DVD screening copies of the Footage to plaintiffs as required by § 9 of
the Agreement, and by failing to support and facilitate all necessary clearances.

34.  Plamtiffs allege that defendants Butler and Estate have further breached
the above-mentioned Agreement by licensing the rights to distribute the Footage
and/or to exploit the Footage to at least one other party, in Violatibn of 97 3 and 4(a)
of the Agreement, wherein plaintiffs were granted exclusive rights to distribute the
Footage and to exploit the Footage in connection with the Rights granted in the
Agreement.

35. Plaintiffs allege that defendants Butler and Estate have further breached
the above-mentioned Agreement by failing to proceed with any RocDarling
Ventures, as specified in § 11(a) of the Agreement, and by failing to partner with
plaintiffs in connection with any RocDarling Ventures, as specified in § 11(a) of the
Agreement.

36.  Asaresult of the foregoing, plaintiffs have been damaged in an amount

according to proof, including lost profits in excess of $1,000,000.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Promissory Fraud — RocDarling)

37. Plaintiffs incorporate by this reference paragraphs 1-36 as though fully
set forth herein. |

38.  On or about February 27, 2009, defendant RocDarling entered into a
written contract with plaintiffs, whereby plaintiffs agreed to partner with
RocDarling in connection with RocDarling Ventures, as specified in § 11(a) of the
Agreement.

39.  The true facts arc that at the time defendants entered into said
Agreement, they did not intend to proceed with any RocDarling Ventures or to

partner with plaintiffs in connection with any such RocDarling Ventures.

b
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40. Defendants’ misrepresentations were made with the intent to induce
plaintiffs into entering into the Agreement and paying them money pursuant to the
Agreement, and plaintiffs, unaware of defendants’ true intentions, detrimentally
relied thereon, and did deliver to defendants approximately $30,000 as an Advance.
Plaintiffs’ detrimental reliance on defendants’ misrepresentations was reasonable
given the existence of a formal, written contract with defendant RocDarling, and
RocDarling’s fulfillment of the condition precedent of securing permission from the
Estate, to wit, notarized letters from Evans and Butler.

41.  Asadirect and proximate result of defendant’s misrepresentations,
acts, and omissions, plaintiffs have suffered general and special damages in an
amount to be proven at trial, but which exceeds one (1) million dollars.

42.  In doing the acts alleged hereinabove, defendants acted with malice,
fraud and oppression. As a result, plaintiffs are entitled to punitive and exemplary

damages.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Promissory Fraud — All Defendants except RocDarling)

43.  Plaintiffs incorporate by this reference paragraphs 1-42 as though fully
set forth herein.

44, On or about February 27, 2009, defendant RocDarling entered into a
written contract with plaintiffs, whereby it was to provide certain Footage in
exchange for valuable consideration from plaintiffs. In addition, in fulfiliment of a
condition precedent to the Agreement, defendants Evans, Butler and Estate sent

notarized letters to plaintiffs authorizing defendant RocDarling to provide said

‘Footage.

45.  The true facts are that at the time RocDarling entered into said

Agreement, the other defendants knew or should have known that RocDarling did

g
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not intend to comply with the Agreement and, in furtherance thereof, RocDarling
has not even attempted to comply with any provision of the Agreement whatsoever.

46.  Defendants’ misrepresentations were made with the intent to induce
plaintiffs into paying them money, and plaintiffs, unaware of defendants’ true
intentions, detrimentally relied thereon, and did deliver to defendants approximately
$30,000. Plaintiffs’ detrimental reliance on defendants’ misrepresentations was
reasonable given the existence of a formal, written contract with defendant
RocDarling.

47.  Asadirect and proximate result of defendants’ misrepresentations,
acts, and omissions, plaintiffs have suffered general and special damages in an
amount to be proven at trial, but which exceeds one (1) million dollars.

48.  In doing the acts alleged hereinabove, defendants acted with malice,

fraud and oppression. As a result, plaintiffs are entitled to punitive and exemplary

damages.
WHEREFORE Plaintiffs pray:
ON THE FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
1. For actual damages and profits in excess of $ 1,000,000 according to
proof.
ON THE SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
2. For actual damages and profits in excess of $ 1,000,000 according to
proof.
ON THE THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
3. For actual damages and profits in excess of $ 1,600,000 according to
proof.

ON THE FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

4. For actual damages and profits in excess of $ 1,000,000 according to

proof.
10
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5. For punitive and exemplary damages.
ON THE FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
6.  For actual damages and profits in excess of $ 1,000,000 according to
proof.
7. For punitive and exemplary damages.
ON ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF
8. For costs of suit and interest.
9. For such other relief as is just and proper.
Respectfully Submitted,
LOWE LAW, P.C,
Date: February 10, 2010 By: %
Steven T. Lowe
Kelly Houle
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
PLAINTIFFS HEREBY REQUEST A JURY TRIAL IN THIS ACTION

Respectfully Submitted,
LOWE LAW, P.C.

Dated: February 10, 2010 By: @—}

Steven T. Lowe \
Kelly Houle
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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